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CHAIR CARROLL: ... (gavel) ... This Land Use Committee meeting of October 5,2005, is now in session.
We have with us this morning: Members Johnson, Molina, Vice-Chair Pontanilla and Tavares. Some of
the other Members will be joining us later.

LU-17

CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR RELOCATION OF EXISTING CONCRETE HATCHING
PLANT FOR AMERON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION dba AMERON HAWAII
(KIHEI) (C.C. No. 05-265)

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, this morning we have on the agenda only two items. The first item we will be
hearing is Land Use Item No. 17, CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR RELOCATION OF EXISTING

13,
Transportation, concerning the phasing ofMokulele Highway
The Committee met on September 14, 2005, to discuss this request. The Committee noted that there is
an existing concrete batching plant being operated by Ameron Hawaii at a nearby location in Kihei
pursuant to a conditional permit granted by Ordinance No. 2794, As Amended. Your Committee was
informed that the existing plant will need to be relocated due to ongoing efforts by the State Department
of Transportation to expand Mokulele Highway.
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The Committee requested that the Department of Corporation Counsel prepare a revised proposed bill,
which would allow the existing plant to continue to operate until the new plant is operable. By
correspondence dated September 21,2005, the Department of Corporation Counsel transmitted a revised
proposed bill.
This morning, we have with us, as resource, we have our Planning Director, Mr. Foley;
Robyn Loudermilk, Planning Planner, Department of Planning; Milton Arakawa, the Director of Public
Works & Environmental Management; Corporation Counsel, James Giroux; Charlene Shibuya, Maui
District Highway Division, State Department of Transportation. And we have the applicant and their
representatives.
We are going to have the applicant, now, give a five-minute presentation, after which we will hear from
the Department and we will have public testimony. The applicant could come forward. Mr. Munekiyo.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Members of the Committee, my name is Mike Munekiyo and
I'm here this afternoon on behalf of Ameron Hawaii. And I'd just like to spend a minute or so to just
recap what the applicant is pursuing at this point. You may recall that the DOT is working on their
Mokulele realignment project, and the current site that Ameron possesses is in the midst of the roadway
alignment; and therefore, relocation is required.
The new plant site is located approximately couple hundred feet actually, they're very nearby to the
current site and that is the action before the Committee, a conditional permit for the relocated site. And
again, you may recall at the last meeting, there was concern that the time extension for the current site
may be jeopardized or may not allow for Ameron to continue operations once this new conditional
permit for the new site is adopted.
And so, I think that's where it was left off that the Corp. Counsel and Council Services staff was going
at
to aa(]fe~;;s
to

was
to
some
part of your folder, where there's a
of information.
First of all, they wanted, the Committee wanted to have a copy of the approval letter with the conditions
for the Land Use Commission Special Use Permit time extension. And attached is a letter dated
July 5, 2005, with the approval letter and the conditions attached.
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Secondly, a reference was made by one of the Maui Planning Commissioners that there was some public
testimony on this particular item related to dust and other nuisance-type complaints. In reviewing the
minutes, it was discovered that there was no public testimony on this particular item. What I forwarded
to the Committee was the front page of the minutes adopted for that meeting. What the front page
shows are the listing of persons who testified at the beginning of that Planning Commission meeting and
who were not going to be staying for the remainder of the meeting. And in reviewing that list, there
were four people who had testified at the beginning of the meeting, and they were all there for another
agenda item. So, there were no public testimony on, on this item.
And lastly, we've been working with the Corporation Counsel's office to assist in the revision of the bill
that is before you today. And that concludes our portion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Loudermilk. We are now going to open public testimony. If the
members in the audience, if everyone could please tum off their cell phones and pagers if they still have
them on. We are going to be accepting public testimony on LU Item No. 17, the item that we have been
discussing.
However if you cannot wait and you're here to give testimony on the next item, which is LU No. 16,
COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT AND CHANGE IN ZONING FOR THE CENTRAL MAUl
SENIOR HOUSING AND COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING PROJECT (KAHULUI), you may give
testimony at this time, or you may choose to wait until we hear the agenda item. When you come
forward, please give your name. You have three minutes and one minute to conclude. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, no one has signed up to testify on this item.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone that wishes to give testimony on this item? Is there anyone that wishes to
give testimony on the next item, that cannot wait until the item comes up, that would like to come
forward at this time? Hearing none, I will close public testimony at this time and reopen it for the next
no OOlectltOn.

PONTANILLA: I'm glad you're back.
CHAIR CARROLL: I win now open the floor to questions or comments from the Members. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
afternoon, Ms. Loudermilk.
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MS. LOUDERMILK: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: My first question is the Conditional Use Permit, the proposed permit is for a
year with a possible one-year extension. Can I ask why one year instead of say, two years or five years?
MS. LOUDERMILK: Normally, for the establishment of a new use, if there are certain project-specific
conditions attached, which in this case there are, we like to have a one-year period, so that the applicant
can corne back to the Department, and we can review and see that all of the conditions have been met or
if not, what are issues preventing them from meeting those conditions. And that's, basically, the only
reason.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And is the current batch plant operating under a CUP as well? And,
and what is the term, or what was the term for the permit that they have?
MS. LOUDERMILK: The, the current operation is also operating under a conditioned permit. And I believe
they had five years, five years this, I believe was the-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Three.
MS. LOUDERMILK: --third, yeah, third time extension. So, we nor. .. , should project-specific conditions be
on, we go one year, three years and then five years or longer-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. LOUDERMILK: --generally.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And my last question, I guess in terms of the complying with the
I
I
matter

a
a
come
And we can provide the Committee a copy with those reports should they
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And it will be the Planning Department will be overseeing an of these
potential things that could, and I, and I stress could happen if, you know, there's complaints from the
neighbors-MS. LOUDERMILK: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --or whatever?
MS. LOUDERMILK: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. LOUDERMILK: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. Because Charlene is here from State Department of
Transportation, I think one of the questions that I had asked last time -- and she may be able to confirm
this -- is with the relocation of where the batch plant is going to be relocated plus with the new
construction of the roadway of Mokulele, of that improvement, I just wanted her to briefly address if
there were going to be any kind of potential conflicts on the roadway, or if other people were going to be
going in and out of the batch plant to create any potential hazards along either Mokulele or other
roadways. So, if she could, please, Mr. Chair, just address that issue.
CHAIR CARROLL: Would you like the question repeated or?
MS. SHIBUYA: No. I think I got the question. Good afternoon, Council Members. And my name is
Charlene Shibuya. I'm the District Construction Engineer with the DOT office on Maui.
And I think I understand your question. You're worried about the access to this relocated plant, and
actually, the access will be significantly improved. Because what happened is when we realign the
~

a

entering.
MS. SHIBUYA: Yes, yes and I believe they currently use the Kaiwahine intersection, and that will actually
take, take their movements away from the residential area. So, I feel it will be a significant
improvement.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And about how long do you anticipate that your Mokulele project
would take in terms of, you know, let's say, the completion of the highway? And will that mean, at
some point in time, that if we're creating bikeways or frontage roads or anything would, would you have
any plans for that, that would also cause a subsequent requirement for the Ameron to relocate, or is that
not going to be a problem to your knowledge?
MS. SHIBUYA: As far as the way this project was designed that's going to be the ultimate condition where
Ameron should not have to relocate in my life time, anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I, I appreciate that. Thanks very much, Mr. Chair. I just wanted to verify
that information. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Any further questions for her? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Charlene, for being here. I
thought since you're here might as well get a response out of you. Anyway, just a following-up on
Member Johnson's questions with regard to the access fee. Current access to the batch plant is from
Kaiwahine and, and then will, so will Kawaihine be closed for access to the plant, which I guess will
help lessen the burden of traffic in that area?
MS. SHIBUYA: Wen, actually the new routing will be through the access closer to the existing Monsanto
facilities. So, yeah, I guess in response to your question, they're going to abandon that access.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.

road improvement in that particular area
and gets online.
MS. SHIBUYA: Well actually, what we're trying to do is, you can see the current construction is the fourth
phase, and we're trying to put in, at, well, towards the end of the year we're going to put, put in this
so-called waterline, so that they can relocate, hook up to the new waterline and be out of the way for the
fifth phase that's, you know, scheduled to come in some time next spring. So, yeah.
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I guess we're trying to coordinate and make sure everything sort of, you know, happens, and I guess
that's why it's important for this permit to get approved, because really we need them to relocate, you
know, pretty soon, so that we can get that off-site waterline, which actually runs through their facility.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Anything further before the Chair gives his recommendation?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chairman. Oh, sorry. Can I ask the applicant-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --or their representative a question before your recommendation?
CHAIR CARROLL: Who's that?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Can I ask Mr. Munekiyo or the-CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --a question.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Munekiyo, please come to the podium.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
reH)Ca1teO. I

Good afternoon, Mr. Munekiyo, just one question.
current

The batch plant has
to

I think the intent for Ameron is to have a site at that location on a permanent basis, recognizing that, I
think construction trends change over time, but this location is strategic for them in that it places a
batching facility in an area where this is still potential growth in terms of concrete demand. And so,
from that standpoint it looks like it's going to be a fairly long-term location for them. But again, you
know, other needs may arise in the future. But I would say, at this point, it should be considered a
long-term commitment for them.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anything further? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Mike, I know that Robin explained about the one year, three years and
then five years. But because this has been an ongoing permit, as you stated, going way back, is the
applicant looking at least at this at this point in time, so they don't have to come back through this
process again, 'cause I know you've just gone through it two times in a very short period of time. Would
you be able to live with, let's say, a three-year, or would you prefer a five-year permit?
MR. MUNEKIYO: I think the applicant is, would be appreciative of any consideration that this Committee
may give for more than a one-year period. And whether it be three or five, that certainly would be
beneficial, because operationally nothing will change. Only thing that will change is location.
And facilities, exactly, what's going to happen is all of the facilities at the current location will be
relocated to the new location. So, there won't be any changes to operational parameters, and so certainly
it would be appreciated if the Committee can consider something more than a year.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much, Mike.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anything further? Hearing none, the Chair would entertain a motion to pass
the revised proposed bill entitled, "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
ORDINANCE NO. 2794 (1999), AS AMENDED, AND GRANTING AMERON HAWAII A
CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR THE OPERATION OF A CONCRETE BATCHING PLANT WITHIN
THE COUNTY AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT KillEI, MAUl,
HA WAIl" on first reading and to file Communication No. 05-265.

Thank
I
Mr. Munekiyo
it
regards to
the conditional permit. This wilJ keep the hatching plant operation until the move is made to the new
location. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, move to amend the, the permit condition to a three-year period
rather than a one-year period.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Ms. Johnson, seconded by Mr. Mateo. Discussion, Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just think that from a business perspective and also because of the fact that
we just had this in Committee -- seems that a very close proximity to the past hearing -- I would really
think that it would be good for us to just give the minimum of three years. I would be willing to go for
five years, but I think as a compromise three years would be more reasonable and they have conducted
business in the area. If there are complaints we can always revisit the issue. But my recommendation is
for the three years. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion to the amendment to the main motion? Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chair, yes. Thank you. I'll support the amendment, and actually I would
support five years. This company has been, I think, very responsible and responsive to our community
needs, and as we all know, the cost of concrete and everything else has gone up and escalated and into,
you know, everything is more expensive. And I think that part of the expense of doing these businesses
are getting these permits.
So, I think that according to the condition as it's written now, they would, they would have one year, and
according to the 19.40, it means they have to come back again. They have to file three months prior to
when their pennit is up. So basically, we do a permit for, you know, nine months.
So, I, I would, you know, certainly want to hear from the other Members, but I would certainly support a
five-year permit for this. It's not like this is a new company, we don't know what they do. The fact that
to

comments.

PONTANILLA: Thank
I can support
years.
20 years and we haven't heard any complaints. So, five years is fine with me.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. I can concur with the five years. I think the
company is very well-established, and they have a good record throughout the community. So, I, I can
feel comfortable with five years as well, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, I concur with what has been said, and at this time, I'd like to yield
to Ms. Johnson.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. I would like to remove my original, withdraw my original
amendment and submit a recommendation or a motion that the permit be extended for a five-year
period, you know, for the batch plant.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. Ms. Johnson's motion, no objection, is withdrawn. And she has a new motion on
the floor-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: --for a five year period. And seconded by Ms. Tavares. Discussion, Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. I think that because I was originally inclined to go to five years, you
know, I, I was really glad that Charmaine said what she did, because I just think it's only reasonable.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion on the amendment to the main motion? Hearing
none, all in favor, signify by saying aye.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, and Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Anderson and Kane.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

AMEND BILL TO GRANT A FIVE-YEAR CONDITIONAL PERMIT.

CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried. Members, we are back to the main motion as amended.
discussion? Hearing none, all those in favor ofthe motion as amended, signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed?

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, and Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

COMMUNICATION.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried. Thank you. I'm going to call for a five-minute recess. . .. (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

1:57 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:02 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: ... (gavel) . .. This Land Use Committee meeting of October 5, 2005, is now back in
session. We have with us: Members Hokama, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla and Tavares.

LU-16

COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT AND CHANGE IN ZONING FOR THE CENTRAL
MAUl SENIOR HOUSING AND COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING PROJECT (KAHULUI)
(C.C. No. 05-253)

CHAIR CARROLL: Our final item is Land Use Item No. 16, community plan amendment and change in
zoning for Central Maui's Senior Housing and County Oflice Building project, Kahului. The Committee
is in receipt of the following: County Communication No. 05-253 from Planning Director transmitting a
request for a community plan amendment from Park to Public/Quasi-Public, and a Change in Zoning
from R-3 Residential District to Public/Quasi-Public District for the Central Maui Senior Housing and
County Office Building project on 4.865 acres in Kahului, Maui.
Correspondence dated September 30, 2005, from the Department of Corporation Counsel, transmitting
the following bill: "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE WAILUKU-KAHULUI
COMMUNITY PLAN AND LAND USE MAP FROM PARK TO PUBLIC/QUASI-PUBLIC FOR
PROPERTY SITUATED AT KAHULUI, MAUl, HAWAII".
And a revised proposed bill, "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING FROM
R-3 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO P-l PUBLIC/QUASI-PUBLIC DISTRICT FOR PROPERTY
MAUl,
is to '"'''....u5'"'
to

our Corporation Counsel,
Management; Alice Lee, Director of Housing and Human Concerns;
James Giroux. And we also have several people that we can call on: Alvin Yoshimori, architects, the
architect for the project. We will begin by having, in this case, the Department come in. Ms. Lee will
give her comments.
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MS. LEE: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and good afternoon, Members of the Land Use Committee. We're here
before you for the items that the Chairman just explained. However, I do want to remind you that this is
one, this is the first of about four or five approvals that we will need from the, from the Council.
Besides this change in zoning community plan amendment, we also have to come before the Council
for, to receive the land donation; to approve a 201G application; and finally, to approve funding for this
project. So, this is the first step of several very major steps.
With us this afternoon is the consultant for the project, and his name is Mike Munekiyo. Mike, would
you like to come down and give a very brief presentation and description of our project?
MR. MUNEKIYO: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair, Members of the Committee. My name is Mike Munekiyo. We
are the consultants to the County of Maui. Our role in this project is the preparation of the
Environmental Assessment. Because County funds are being used, we are subject to Chapter 343 of the
Hawaii Revised Statutes. The final EA was published in the March 8th edition of the Environmental
Notice, March 8, '05 issue, so that task has been concluded.

Separately, we are also assisting the Department in the processing of the Section 201G application. The
figure that we've passed out, which is before you, is from the final EA document, and basically, it
provides a site overview.
On the right side of the plan, there's Puunene Avenue just as a reference point, and on the left side
Kaulawahine Street. You notice at the top of the page is the Kahului Post Office, Salvation Army and
Kahului swimming pool, so I think that gives Committee Members some reference as to location and
relative proximity to other kinds of uses in the area.
The figure itself, you'n notice, is divided into two numeric designations: there's a No. 1 in a box, and
there's a No.2 in the box. That area demarcated by the dash lines, designated as No.1, is the senior
39
a
a cmnmum

So collectively, this is being referred to as the Maui Senior, Central Maui Senior Housing and County
Office Buildings project and that is the item that is, the subject of the community plan amendment and
the change in zoning, which the Planning Director has initiated.
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We'd be happy to answer any questions, which the Committee Members may have with respect to the
technical elements of the project. As Chair has mentioned, we do have Alvin Yoshimori, our project
architect here as well this afternoon.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Does Planning Department have any comment they would like to make at
this time or Environmental Management?
MS. CAIGOY: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I can summarize the Department's transmittal. On July 1, 2005, the
Department transmitted for your review and action an amendment to the Wailuku-Kahului Community
Plan from Park to Public/Quasi-Public and a change in zoning from R-3 Residential to P-l
Public/Quasi-Public for an entire property measuring 4.865 acres located at TMK: 3-7-013:parcel 026 in
Kahului, island ofMaui. Both amendments are Director-initiated.
The property's existing land use designations are as follows: it's located in the State Urban District, and
as I've indicated, the community plan is Park and the zoning is R-3 Residential. Further, the property is
not located within the Special Management Area.
The Maui Planning Commission held a public hearing for the proposed land use amendments on
May 10,2005. At that time, no written or oral public testimony was received. The Maui Planning
Commission recommended approval of the proposed land use amendments.
Included within the Department's transmittal were copies of the draft ordinances, the community,
community plan Map No. CP-417 and change-in-zoning Map No. L-l 09 as well as the Department of
Planning's report and recommendation report to the Maui Planning Commission. Also, transmitted was
a letter received after the public hearing date from State Historic Preservation Division. That letter is
dated June 20, 2005. And last, the minutes of the public hearing were also transmitted. This concludes
the Department's summary.

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
MR COHEN: Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen. My name is Morrie Cohen, a resident of Haiku.
Actually, I have sort of a conflicted position here today. A little bit of a background, I've been quite
active in Hale Makua since, oh, the early 70's, member of the board, member of a number of committees
and currently a member of the board and Chair of the Investment Committee of Hale Makua. And from
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that standpoint, I can heartedly endorse this project, I think it's needed in the community and very
important for us to have and wish it had been done, you know, a long time ago. And I, and I appreciate
the effort.
On the other hand, I am a vendor at the swap meet, which obviously will be relocated when all of this
takes place. My wife and I run a business. We have probably participated with Will Wong's operation
for the last 12 years at the site on Puunene Avenue.
My purpose of being here today is basically to, to maintain the level of awareness of public opinion and
comments by various elected officials and appointed officials relative to what's been going on. And I
sent a letter quite recently, September 9th , to Chair of the County Council, Riki Hokama.
And let me just read the last paragraph, my, my final request which is sort of a rhetorical question. How
can I and the hundreds of other vendors and the thousands of attendees be assured the Mayor, Alice Lee
and the County Council will work together, so that under no circumstances will we be forced to move
out of the current site prior to the establishment of a new location. And that's pretty much my, my
message, and, and I guess since there going to be presentations by Housing Chair Alice Lee over the
next year or so, I'll probably be appearing each time to say exactly the same thing.
But it, you know, the support goes back to a letter that I have from our Mayor Alan Arakawa to a
th
Mr. Wilfred Suzuki back on June 15 , where he says, please be assured -- that's the Mayor says -- please
be assured we do not intend to proceed with our senior housing project without first securing an
alternative site for the Maw Swap Meet. As you are aware, the Maui Swap Meet has grown in
popularity among both the local and the tourist population in this community. And its present location,
and its present location can no longer accommodate the large number of people that it serves.
And Ms. Lee back in January 23 rd , quoted in The Maui News says, but Housing and Human Concerns
Director Alice Lee stresses that vendors won't be kicked out of the property. Work will not begin on
m~
I
~-

As a matter of fact, in a phone conversation
Ms.
back August, she
out
me just read it very quickly, Alice advises that she will probably have aU necessary paperwork, that is
building and zoning permits, by June or July 2006. She further stated that offers to bid will be issued
and that the final bid acceptance will probably be effective early 2007. She also indicated that she has
asked your offices -- this is my letter to Mayor Arakawa -- she has also asked-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
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MR. COHEN: --your office to continue to assist in helping to find a suitable site for the relocated Maui Swap
Meet. So once again, let me just repeat my, my request to The Honorable Riki Hokama in my letter to
him; and hopefully, some of the Council Members have gotten copies of my correspondence. And, and
I can tell you that if we were forced to move out it would be a disaster to our family. How can I and the
hundreds of other vendors and the thousands of attendees be assured that the Mayor, Alice Lee and the
County Council will work together, so that under no circumstances will we be forced to move out of the
current location prior to the establishment of a new location? And I thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Mr. Pontanilla. One moment. .. (inaudible). ..
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good afternoon, Mr. Cohen. In regards to a proposed location,
has there been any talks in regards to what locations are being considered for the new swap meet area?
MR. COHEN: I have only information directly from Wil Wong on that, and I'm sure he'll address that. He's
here in the, in the Council Chambers. But I understand that there are negotiations with Maui
Community College and the Board of Regents, and that it has proceeded slowly but it is proceeding.
Yes.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
MR. COHEN: Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Meleana Higgins to be followed by Hyland Chang.

MEO, as you know, is strongly
support
expanding housing
especially for local residents. So, we are very excited about this project, and we are very happy to be
supporting development of the 39 rentals for the seniors in our community, and the location is perfect.
MEO busses come right by there, so it will be really great. And we hope that the projects will receive
their entitlements as quickly as possible and that they can be built as soon as possible and meet this
critical need for the senior housing in our community. And we also support the much-needed
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government office space expansion for the Housing Division, the Community Development Block Grant
office, Volunteer Center and the Immigrant Services Division. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NAKASONE: The next testifier is Hyland Chang to be followed by Wil Wong.
MR. CHANG: Mr. Chairman, Members of the Board. My name is Hyland Chang and I'm a vendor at the Maui
Swap Meet. You know, I'm not against the housing or the housing project for the senior citizens or any
revision. Our main concern as vendors and participants at the Maui Swap Meet is ample time is given
for a relocation.
We just heard another approval given to a business that's been on Maui for quite a few years, and all the
safety precautions and things needed in order to have a successful business. I think that adequate time
should be given and considered for a movement like the Maui Swap Meet. Like I said, again, just
adequate time for relocation as far as consideration. As I said, I'm not against, you know, the bill and
also the senior housing. You know, one day, I might be using it. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chang, good afternoon. And I going be living right next to you. What is
adequate time?
MR. CHANG: I don't knOw. You know, it depends on who you working with. You know, you know, if
adequate areas and space can be had, you know, within a year then so be it. I guess what I'm saying is,
you know, it depends on, you know, we've heard testimony that there is works with the MCC. I'm not
sure other areas. But how long does that take? The wheel tums--

MR.

Thank you.

MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Wi! Wong to be followed by Vernon Hough.
MR. WONG: Good afternoon, Chairman Carroll and Members of the Council. My name is Wi! Wong. I'm the
president of Maui Exposition. Maui Exposition has been operating the swap meet here on Maui for the
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last 24 years. I just want to say that I, too, am not against the rezoning request or the planned senior
housing and office building.
My concern is that once the request is granted the speed in which development will proceed that might
have negative consequences for the swap meet. The swap meet operation, currently on A&B property,
has been a convenient temporary arrangement that has spanned almost 15 years. The area was
previously an eyesore. I don't know how many of you remember what that area looked like. It was
overgrown with shrubs; people were dumping garbage, trash, appliances; they were dumping cars there.
And when we took over the property, we restored it to a park-like condition; we removed all the junk
cars; we cleared the entire property. And for the last 14 years, we've relieved A&B of any type of
maintenance on that property, and you know, we've kept and maintained the property to the best of our
ability and keeping it nice and clean.
It, it has been said that I've had perhaps numerous options to relocate, and I just want to state for, for

the ... the tact is the possibilities of relocating the swap meet in its size right now has been very
minimal. Mr. Vicens is sitting there, and I, I, he and I, he told me in mid-2003 of the County plans for
the senior housing and the offices. And I think I worked with Mr. Vicens for a little over a year trying to
identify potential sites that could be utilized as a swap meet.
After about a year -- he laughs -- nothing really materialized and MCC called me in, and I met with the
staff at the Maui Community College to perhaps relocating the swap meet on their grounds. I gave them
a presentation; I told them what I needed; and I gave them some tentative plans. They met with the
University of Hawaii Board of Regents in November of 2004, and the Board of Regents unanimously
approved the concept. One of the difficulties I am having in securing a lease there is-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good afternoon, Mr. Wong.
MR. WONG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Can you give us an estimate of roughly how many vendors operate at the
current site?
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MR. WONG: Currently at the present site, we have approximately 250 spaces. Out of the 250 spaces, maybe
two-thirds are regular vendors or vendors that come all the time. We do have part-time vendors that
maybe come two times a year. We have some vendors that may come once a month. All told, I think
you're looking at maybe in excess of 1,000 vendors every year that do come to participate in the swap
meet. And I do want to add that because we're talking about seniors' housing we certainly have a great
amount of senior vendors at the swap meet that really rely on the swap meet.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And roughly on a typical Saturday, how much people do you estimate are
serviced or customers go in and out of the site?
MR. WONG: Yeah. Our attendance ranges anywhere between 3,000 to 4,000 on every given Saturday.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. WONG: This is why the location at Maui Community College was so attractive to me, because the, the
parking, customer parking would more than triple. And in the event that it reaches a saturation point, I
have an option to utilize a soccer field where they presently have the drive-in movies as overflow
parking. And, and because it's located right off Wahine Pio Road, I was very confident of any traffic
controls that I could implement there. I, I think, you know, overall it would be a much easier location
for me to operate out of It's just getting the lease in my hands right now.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pontanilla, followed by Mr. Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Wong. The site that you looking at is between the parking lot
ofMCC and Kahului Beach Road?

is not an

MR. WONG: Well, when I talked to the administration at MCC, they've told me that they have seen it puddle
but never flooding. I, I mean, you know, there might be a hundred-year storm that where it rains
incessantly for a long period of time, but the good thing here is, in the event of rain, I do have an option
to operate on a limited scale on the paved parking area. So, that's the way, you know, it'll work.
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I don't foresee that drain basin really flooding. If it poses a potential hazard, like I say is, we do have an
option in the lease to, in the proposed lease, to operate on the paved parking area. Incidentally, the
paved parking area has stalls for 800 cars.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good. Thank you for that information. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Mr., Mr. Wong, you're negotiating with Maui
Community College. The space available then would be able to take care of your 250 stalls or the total
number of vendors that you actually have participating?
MR WONG: Yes it would, because presently, our, presently, the area that we're operating on is 4.6 acres, and
we have about just under two acres of vending spaces. And if everything goes as planned with Maui
Community College I would, I would attain about three acres of vending spaces.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So-MR. WONG: So, it's just slightly larger.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --okay and they would, this is, there's no, I guess, selection process?
Everybody who participates will still be able to participate as vendors?
MR. WONG: If we ended up with that location, yes. Because I, I do have to admit that I have worked on other
possibilities, and the other possibilities aren't as good as this one here. Meaning that it would be
downsizing considerably and not being able to accommodate the existing amount of vendors.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, if the negotiation does go through and you do get your lease then
teCnmCallj the
meet
to
a 1J"'••v ....

IS

to

to BTn""n

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. You, and you said... (inaudible)...
MR. WONG: --and then another 10 to 12 months to put in the infrastructure and the improvements that are
necessary.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, we're looking at about a year, about a year and a half if not longer?
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MR. WONG: Two years.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Two years. Okay. Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: One more, one more question.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Wong, thanks for updating us on your new potential location. One
of the things that I would really -- and if you can't tell me I understand -- but I would like to know if
somewhere in the lease is there just a fixed figure that you will be paying Maui Community College for
this, or will they be able to perhaps get some kind of stream of revenue to help support some of the
programs that they have at the college?
MR. WONG: Yeah. Actually-CHAIR CARROLL: Actually, I'm going to interrupt over here. I've let this discussion with Maui Community
College since it's of a direct concern to us about the project, the proposal before us, the bill. However,
getting into detail about how the swap meet will be run and cost factors and what is a little bit too far
afield for what we have posted.
So, I would ask, that is, that is getting into details of operations if they're over there. That's, we're
getting a little bit too far afield over there. So, I would ask Members to restrain themselves.
Ms. Johnson.

can
" ..d.Li··...U .....

CARROLL: I

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Was there any discussion with the County of Maui on the
possibility of utilizing our stadium area should, should MCC, you know, fall through?
MR. WONG: I think anything at this moment remains a possibility, but going into a facility that primarily is
designated for recreational purposes might be a conflict. As you well aware of, you know, every
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Saturday, there's numerous athletic activities going on, and I would try to, hate to operate, you know,
with, with so many other athletic activities going on. I think it would be much more cumbersome.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the reason why I ask this question is, you know, if you have any
alternative other than MCC, because you got 250 vendors that's hanging on the line. So, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank
you.
MR. WONG: Okay. Thank you very much.

MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Vernon Hough, to be followed by Lei Hough.
MR. HOUGH: Mr. Chair, ladies and gentlemen, my name is Vernon Martin Hough. I'm called Marty. Now, I

think that Wil Wong and Morrie Cohen have covered the bases very well. For me to stand up here and
talk after that is kind of a waste of time. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? If not, thank you very much. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Next testifier is Lei Hough to be followed by Lorraine Schmidt.
MS. HOUGH: Mr. Chair, ladies and gentlemen, I'm the wife of the one that didn't want to say anything. Shall I
say ditto? Mr. Wong and Morrie has covered the bases. All I want to say, I'm a senior also with the
250 vendors there. And, Mr. Riki Hokama, I'm Lei Hough, you supposed to let me know this meeting
was coming up. But anyway, thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? If not, thank you very much for coming.
me

assurance
meet at
I
I have been at the swap meet ever since they opened,
24 years,
it is my
And without it my son wouldn't have gone to college, which he just graduated at Cornell. And I'd
appreciate it if this would all work out. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Thank you very much. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The last testifier who signed up is Meriah St. John.
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MS. ST. JOHN: Yes. Good afternoon and thank you for letting us all speak. I'm like Lorraine, I've been there
almost 24 years. I raised two kids as a single mom and its just been a good opportunity, and I also think
that all the visitors that come are, it's like they get to meet the local artists and get the local vegetables
and everything. And it would really be a shame if we didn't have plenty of time to relocate before,
before the other thing gets done. And I do also support the senior housing and everything. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you very much. We
have no further testifiers signed up. Is there anyone in the audience that wishes to give testimony on this
agenda item? Please come forward now. Seeing none, if there's no objections, Members, we will be
closing public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed.

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .•
CHAIR CARROLL:
Ms. Tavares.

Members, and I'll turn over the time for, to you for questions and discussion.

COUNCILMEMBER T AVARES: Mr. Chairman, thank you. I had some questions for, I think, Ms. Lee. If, if
you could, Ms. Lee, give us your time line and your funding sources for this project, please.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Lee, I think it would be better if you came over here.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Kick James off. He's not doing anything.

Those two
would be
sources and
a
obligation bonds. And as I had mentioned earlier, this is the first of a number of approvals that we need
from the Council. And funding will be very important, 'cause it's going to be important whether you're
going to decide that, that this project. .. (CHANGE TAPE)... would be deserving of County funds as far
as a bond float.
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And then secondly, timing we're hoping, we were hoping that we would receive all of our approvals by
summer of next year. And at that point, the construction drawings would be started after all of the
approvals are received, and we would hopefully begin construction in 2007. So, that was our plan.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Do you have funding now in place for any portion of this development?
MS. LEE: Yes. We, we have several million dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And that, what was the source of that?
MS. LEE: Federal funds-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, Federal-MS. LEE: --Home funds, EDI funds, mostly Federal funds.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, you haven't had any County funds like to do the preliminary planning
and all that stuff? You've been using the Federal funds?
MS. LEE: We've been using the Federal funds.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. The other question that I had, Mr. Chair, is the plan that
was submitted to us from Munekiyo and Hiraga shows a layout. How much of this is conceptual and
how much can be changed? I mean, is, is this engraved in stone, so to speak, or are there adjustments
that can be made on this particular plan?
MS. LEE: We can make adjustments.

comment
are
more
out
Shopping Center, for ,:>v",rnnl
interior, so that you're not looking at ... let's say, the existing
where you have three or four blocks that look, I mean, well, not three or four blocks, two blocks of
parking lot and the buildings are set far back. So, you're, you're looking at parking lots all the time
rather than, perhaps, some interesting storefronts or landscape areas, things like that.
Is that something that you folks could talk about? Switching your 2A building if you tum that around
and moved it to Puunene Avenue, and if you take, took your other offices 2B and moved that up closer.
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You know, you got your loading zone right there on the street side and putting that on the opposite side,
or somehow work it out so that you have more of a frontage presence of your office buildings.
MS. LEE: I'm, I'm sure we can ask our architect to take a look at your suggestions. We will have, we would
have changed this about three or four times, you know, by, by trying to follow your suggestions. Our
architect will, is quickly becoming a millionaire because of all the changes that we have made so far
without even doing any construction drawings.
One of the reasons why we, we have the site plan the way it is, is because the entrance you can see
where the 2 is, the entrance is at a point where the building has to be set back and that's why the 2A is as
far back as it can go to the border of IB. But, and then there's a constraint on, on the 2B, which is the on
the side of the Kahului Post Office, where there's a smaller area for the smaller building. But, but if you
could, through this Committee, transmit any suggestions we can work with our architect and see if
there's a possibility of making one, another change to the site plan on the 2 component.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: "Cause, yeah. I would, I'll go ahead and do that or ask the Chair to do that.
I think that also if you talk with the A&B folks their new concept for the Kahului Shopping Center, I
believe, is going to implement some of those principles of buildings at the frontage road, road frontages
with the parking on the interior. I think that's the direction they're going in, so I think the fit for that, that
super-block, which would include this, you know, would look more like it blended together perhaps and
make it more, you know, pedestrian-friendly perhaps. So, I'll communicate that with, to the Chairman
about it and send you folks a letter and see if something can be done along those lines to help improve
the, the physical aesthetics of the project. Thank you.
MS. LEE: Thank you. We're not so concerned, at this point, about design although, you know, we are
concerned about it every time we make a change on the cost. But the only matter that we're seriously
concerned about is how much cost would it add to the project--

were
Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: And it showed that this entrance, you can, you have to make some
improvements on Puunene Avenue for that entrance-MS. LEE: Yes. Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --with left turn pockets and storage and all that stuff?
MS. LEE: Vb huh.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Tavares, I have in my office the plans from some of our conferences for the street
scheme concept, which I think is what you're talking about. And we will include that along with a letter
to Ms. Lee in Housing-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: --to try to implement what you were talking about.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Good afternoon, Alice.
MS. LEE: Good afternoon.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: One of the things that we always get problems with is a place for our
community police officers in Kahului. Right now, I don't know where they're located. Is there a
possibility of providing some space, so that they can be located at this facility? And I say that because it
would provide some kind of security for your senior housing and not only that, the one across the street
also.

a ...,,1"1",,"
we found that out, then we had to redesign the whole project again.
space left there for them on this 4.8 acres.
"PC'PHlP

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: But if you could take a look as far as providing that space for our community
police officers. I think this is more of a central location for them for Kahului. And the other question
that I have is that I'm assuming that your Department will all move to this one location here.
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MS. LEE: No.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, you'll still maintain the office over here?
MS. LEE: Yes. We are thinking about it, if, if the Council decides that we should, 'cause we have been
thinking about it. We, we were almost moved to One Main Plaza recently. And in the future, we
believe that we'd be better off moving to Kahului than One Main Plaza as, as the rest of the Department.
So, there is that possibility, and we have started discussions with the architect to see if, if we added
another story if that would be possible. But then, you know, we don't know if we can afford it.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Thank you for that information. And I would think, you know, if you're
going to move part of your Department you just as well move the whole Department, create some space
in this building at the same time. That's the reason why for the question in regards to, you know, if your
whole Department is moving. That way you have full control of the people that, you know, you
supervise over.
MS. LEE: Thank you, Council Member. I do want to point out that primarily this site was, was going to be
made available to our Housing Division ,which is currently in Kahului. The Housing Division is
currently renting space in the old Kahului Shopping Center, so we, we wanted to, and they were
quartered there temporarily.
All along we had planned to build their own building and this is the site that we chose. And so, they're,
just be moving a couple of blocks. I really don't have physical oversight of them right now and, and
they primarily will be taking up most of this property. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: You got an estimated cost for this project right now?
MS.

That cost is a year-and-a-half old and that was about, about, roughly $10 million.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Just to follow up on Member Pontanilla's questions with regards to the, you
know, what, what specific divisions will be located within this proposed site. For permanent location
you're looking at Housing, Immigration Services, CDBG, Volunteer Center and Office of Aging at this
time?
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MS. LEE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And so far, no other plans at this point for other divisions as well?
Depending on I guess what, on what, I guess, we say in-MS. LEE: Depending on what you say, but if we, if we did move any more offices there we'd have to build up.
There's no more room on the ground. So, and if, if you're willing we'd all move, you know, if, if we had
all the money. We'd all move because it's more practical for us to be there.
Eventually, this, this whole building is going to be renovated and all of us including the seventh and
eight floors will have to move eventually while the, this, this building is being renovated. So, it would
be good planning if, if we were able to move our -- we occupy about three-fourths of the fourth
floor -- to move all of us out. I think that would be good planning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Currently, your Department is spread out over what sites: the County building
and I believe you have an office in the Kahului Shopping Center as well?
MS. LEE: Yes. And Kaunoa.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And Kaunoa. Okay. Because of the, I guess, for example, here in the County
building, I think in our Civil Defense office they rent out the office during non-business hours for public
use. Are there any plans in the current design to have any office space for a meeting area for the public
to use in your current design at this point?
MS. LEE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.

IS

new

on a

for more senior housing? Can you, I guess, share with us the, the need
facilities on this particular site?
MS. LEE: Yes. As you know, we've, this, we've out-used, I mean this, this building is, is much too small for
all of our purposes. And you'll find many, various offices in One Main Plaza and elsewhere. We need a
new County building or a compound. That's one.

- 29-

LAND USE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

October 5, 2005

Secondly, one of the reasons why we wanted Housing, the Housing Division to move to this project site
is because we wanted the Housing Division to help pay for the bills. And right now, the Housing
Section 8 program pays roughly $10,000 a month in rent, which doesn't really cost the County anything.
But nevertheless they pay about that much in a rent. We expect to charge the same amount or a little
more, whatever we can, can get basically from our Section 8 program to help pay back the, the general
obligation bonds that we expect to float for this project.
And I made a mistake earlier, I'd said that the cost, the estimated cost was 10 million. Actually, it's
more between 13 and 14 million. And that, that's an old estimated cost. So, we felt it would be, just as,
as we normally do with any other project, let's take the West Maui Senior Housing project. We asked
the, the Liquor Department if they wanted space, because we wanted to charge them rent. So, we charge
them rent and they help pay for, you know, electricity and so forth at the West Maui Senior Center.
This one we're going to be collecting maybe about $30,000 or so in rent from the units and at least
$10,000 a month from Section 8, so we expect to generate revenue of about anywhere from $360,000 a
year, plus. Because the rents will vary but the space ... (inaudible) ... roughly five, six hundred dollar
rent. And like I said, we're going to try and, and get the most we can out of Section 8. Because we
believe that, that this project should at least strive to be self-sufficient.
And five years ago, it would have been, it would have penciled out but now in today's world, no, it's
won't. But we feel that we want it to generate as, some, as much income as possible to help the County
pay back the, the loan.
Also, we invited, along the same lines, we invited CDBG to join us, so that we can charge them
something, also. And they are helping us pay for the senior community center with a grant of about
$300,000-plus. So, that's kind of the reason, how we put this together. It's like, who could, who can we
collect rent from, or who we can, can we get money from can come to our, our compound. Because
essentially, the taxpayers have to pay for this project. So, how can we lessen the burden on the
us.
was

MS.

Good afternoon.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The, the 13-to-14 million price tag, the preliminary price tag that we're looking
at right now, how much money is available now? How much money do you have now? You referenced
you had some.
MS. LEE: Okay. We probably have accumulated around four to five million dollars.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: ... (inaudible) ... And I'm looking at the architectural map that was shared
with us. The divisions of 1 and 2. is, is the divisions also indicative of a phasing of this project?
MS. LEE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The whole project going be built one time?
MS. LEE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
projected--

Okay.

And you said it was somewhere in about 2007, 2008, that you

MS. LEE: To start cons-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --yeah, start construction.
MS. LEE: --around 2007, to start construction.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay_ And then, and then finally, Ms. Lee, I guess we1ve heard the testifiers.
Could you speak towards their, their concerns regarding the swap meet site? Mr. Chair, if that is
appropriate? If you could address some of the issues that were shared with them?
MS. LEE: Yes. First of all, Council Member, if you don't mind, I just want to thank the swap meet vendors
and especially Mr. Wong, who has been very patient throughout this process and very, very cordial.
You know, we've, I think we've had a very professional and cordial relationship throughout, and I know
it, they're feeling a bit anxious as our project is moving through the system. But our project has taken
like five years up till now.

not
I
else at MCC, the business manager, I think they're on the verge on reaching some
of an
I spoke with the Chancellor recently and he said, as far as he's concerned, he doesn't foresee any more
problems other than the insurance matter that Mr. Wong described today_
The college, the college did hire an engineer to do a report, so that they, they can, they could possibly
lessen the amount on the insurance policy that they have, that they originally required of Mr. Wong. So,
they're trying to cooperate on their side, but they're government, and government moves really slow.
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And that's, it's really unfortunate but that, you know, if, if the County of Maui moves a little slow well,
they're worse.
And unfortunately, that's, that's been an impediment to the process, and once that's cleared, then
Mr. Wong can proceed with getting his SMA approval and then moving forward on the, on the
construction. We have tried to reassure them throughout that we are not trying to displace them. But at
the same time, we want them to know that whatever they can do to move their process along, you know,
we encourage them to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And so, what I'm hearing is at this particular point, because your timetable is
not until 2006, 2007, that there is no immediate push right now to get them off the property?
MS. LEE: None whatsoever, none whatsoever. Our time line right now to me is optimistic, the 2006 and 2007
is optimistic. Because as we go through the process we may encounter suggestions for changes, which
then takes this back to the drawing board, you know, and that, you know, delays the project a few
months more. But, you know, we're, we're not against that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. And, Mr. Chair, ifI may, and you can, you know, call me
out any time. Your, this particular project can you tell us why it's going to be a 201G?
MS. LEE: Yes. Because we needed to, when we changed this to Public/Quasi-Public then the senior portion of
the project is not allowed, senior houses.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Okay. Got it.
MR. FOLEY: Yeah. I, I believe, Mr. Chairman, if I might, I believe that's correct currently, although we, we
recommend a revision to the Public/Quasi-Public to allow non-profit housing for seniors. But that hasn't
happened yet, either.

us
long process like everyone else is going through. Because of some of
things that were said
Councilmember Tavares earlier and also just looking at the configuration and knowing that you want to
try and make the project pencil out, my question would be, because there's two separate buildings -- of
course that may add to the cost -- I know that you're also looking at parking, where it's just not covered.
If you were to consolidate into, let's say, a larger building and then put a portion of the parking actually
underneath the structure, maybe go a little bit higher, possibly even renting out or including some office
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space that might be available to other, not necessarily non-profit agencies, it may be non-profit agencies
but maybe like a small little medical clinic, you know, a Gammie location, you know, something like
that, something that would go along with senior services. Have you ever given any thought to maybe,
just combining both of those buildings into one, putting in some parking, actually, within the building
structure itself to actually allow you to expand some of the space, not necessarily the government, but to
other entities, so that you could get revenue from that?
MS. LEE: No. We haven't, Council Member. What's primarily driving this project, besides, you know, the
overall need, is our budget. And we're over budget as it is. So, I, you know, we'd be open to discussion
on, on something like that, but you know I'm afraid we're looking at, possibly, a $20 million project
now, as is, as is.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and I appreciate that. 'Cause what I always try to do is look at, the
same thing that you're looking at, is how can we creatively marry this to either, if it's a non-profit, a
private/public partnership? And I'm thinking of entities like Lokahi or other, you know, maybe even
co-locating another office, a commercial, you know, type operation that would be able to subsidize or
cost share a portion of this. So, they'd say, well, okay, if we can have one quarter of the building.
Because you're getting all this other government money, we'll come in. Maybe it's a construction
company, maybe it's, you know, a development company, I don't know what form that would take. It
could be a non-profit such as Lokahi, Hui Malama.
I have no idea, but I think if we can look or you can maybe look for maybe a partner to come on board,
and then if they have the staffing or the people already on board that would be able to help offset some
of those costs it might be another way where we could approach it, kind of like when we were talking
about the parking structure, I think, here in Wailuku, you know combining that with maybe some other
enterprises.
I would just, you know, I don't want to add more to the cost or more to your burden. But if maybe I
out

CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: My question, Chairman -- thank you -- would be as a follow-up to
Mr. Mateo's. I guess besides a 201 G the Department could get a variance from the Variance Board.
Would that be another process available to the Department? I don't know if Ms. Lee or Mr. Foley would
care to give comment?
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MS. LEE: Before I hand the mike over to Mr. Foley, I really don't believe that process is available to us;
otherwise, we would have done that. Go ahead.
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, I would agree with Alice, 1 don't think this is an appropriate kind of an
application for a variance. 1 don't see how the findings could be made by the BVA.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, another point that we disagree on. I going be real candid. I, 1, there's
things that I like in this proposal, there's things that 1 definitely don't like. But I think it gives us
additional opportunities, Mr. Chairman, and I would bring one potential scenario that this project
provides an opportunity for. But let me make a statement first, because it's going to apply to one portion
of the proposal.
While I can appreciate the Department's desire to relocate and concentrate, 1 would have hoped this
Administration would have come down forward and readdressed either this Committee or the Council
about its intentions of how it plans to deal with departmental requirements. 'Cause at one point, I had
thought it was going to be part of a support for us to continue to expand the Wailuku complex and
adjacent annexes that we would be considering as well as the Wailuku municipal parking lot to provide
service for service Departments, additional parking and other potential multi-use for the revitalization of
Wailuku.
I don't support relocating the County seat to Kahului, in any manner. So, saying that, Mr. Chairman, I
would think one of the opportunities that this project presents to us since the administration is
dogged... (CHANGE TAPE) ... about Imi Kala Street improvement project under Public Works and the
concerns of st. Anthony School, that one potential opportunity this provides us, Mr. Chainnan, is to see
on a multiple partnership that Hale Makua would relocate to this site, 'cause it is my understanding they
currently sit on County property. We could work out something with St. Anthony School to take
portions of the current Hale Makua site, and the County could then move forward with its Imi Kala
project if the Council buys in to do a developer's requirement of approval. That's always, for

me
~
a
Mr. Chairman, 13
now we might
dealing with a new £~YJlHHJ,'"
may have a different tact on how to approach the project. So, I would ask that we look at the potential
opportunities this provides this Committee in how to address just not what is before us specifically but
how we can possibly resolve some of the additional concerns that continually dog us by Administration's
determination again to bring Imi Kala forward, again, after we have made some policy decisions.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Mr., Mr. Hokama, with the scenario that, you know, had just described over there, the
proposed bills before us, which that, that portion would still have to take place even if we went and did
exactly what you said, am I correct?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that, Chairman, is part of things that I like.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I think the land use designation is moving in the correct direction.
CHAIR CARROLL: In the correct, that's what I'm getting at. So, what we have before us today even if we did
the scenario that you had outlined should take place, but we still can look at what we have today would
still be appropriate. I just wanted to make it clear... (inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: In a sense, Chairman, you're, you're exactly right, you're exactly right. And
that's why I say, there's things I like about this consideration, and there's things that I don't like. Okay. I
don't have a problem supporting the land use movement from current to what is being proposed. Like I
said, I believe it gives us a lot of opportunities besides the concept that the Department proposes to us.
CHAIR CARROLL: I think you... (inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And what I find interesting, Chairman, is the landowner themselves are very
silent on this one. And what's the deal on that? Are we going to get it free? I don't think it's free. They
going ask for something. Did, are they willing, are they already terminating the existing lease
agreement with the Department to drive this? What are we going to accept the land for? When are we
going to get the land? Ms. Lee mentioned, you know, there eventually comes a requirement of Council
to accept the property on behalf of the County. 'Cause the property owner was sincere why isn't that
before us, too? I find it interesting how we moving forward on this one, Chairman. I'm done at this

--excuse me.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (inaudible)... possibility of asking questions regarding drainage, traffic?
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CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is there a possibility of asking questions regarding drainage and traffic?
CHAIR CARROLL: You know what, it's kind of late and I know some Members have indicated they would
like a break. So, why don't we take a ten-minute recess and then we'll get back to Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ten minute recess ... .(gavel) . ..

RECESS:

3:15 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:34 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: .. . (gavel) . .. This Land Use Committee meeting of October 5, 2005, is back in, called
back to order. And when we stopped, I was calling on Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I was going to address the drainage as well as the traffic
impact in regards to this particular project for affordable senior housing and the County office building.
And I understand that when they come through the 201 G process, that probably the same questions will
be asked. But for now if Mr. Arakawa can give us some idea -- and I talked to Mr. Arakawa during our
break -- as far as the drainage system for the Kahului area, especially around this area, you know, how
we, how does that tie in with our master plan that we have.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Arakawa?
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Let me just make a few comments regarding drainage regarding the
basically
no net
as
our Q:e!ler.al

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And the other question is in regards to the traffic impact, impact
along Puunene Avenue. I understand that on the proposal on the 201G they had studies done for
Puunene Avenue, and I was more interested in the area where the existing Kahului Post Office site is
located and the proposed project area. I do go to the post office during noon time, and, and the traffic in
that particular area is so horrendous is, and you know how it will affect the traffic pattern going into and
exiting the project area.
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I understand that there is also a driveway on Kaulawahine Street that can also be utilized. And my
question is the, the study that was made was for a.m. peak hours as well as p.m. peak hours. And, and I
think a study on the noon peak hour time should be done, too. So, those were the two concerns that I
had, and when the 201 G process comes to the Housing and Human Services Committee hopefully some
of this can be answered more thoroughly.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Arakawa?
MR. ARAKAW A: Mr. Chairman, I would like to request that the Committee discuss the matter with
Charlene Shibuya as Puunene Avenue is actually a State highway. And DOT has reviewed this project
and did have some comments with regard to, well, traffic in general. And, and she is here. I just talked
with her during the break, and she is willing to make some comments to the Committee.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: That would, that would be good, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Shibuya, could you please come to the microphone, to the podium.
MS. SHIBUYA: Charlene Shibuya, again, representing Department of Transportation.
questions--

What kind of

CHAIR CARROLL: Could you repeat the question, please, Mr. Pontanilla.
MS. SHIBUYA: --yeah. What was the question?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. The traffic impact study that was done for this particular project, and we
don't have that information with us, and I think when the 201 G process comes about then that
information will be provided to us as far as the Council is concerned. I know there were studies made

were
or
Not so much you know like this site creating
nearby intersections.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, more pedestrian safety?
MS. SHIBUYA: Pedestrian and, and driveway operations, too.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Can I follow up with Ms. Shibuya since-CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --she's at the podium, Chairman? How much impact would Kaahumanu
Avenue, let's say, between entrance to Pier 2, Young Brothers, and let's say, Kanaloa would impact
Puunene and this project if any?
MS. SHIBUYA: Actually, in the conclusion it really states, you know, one person or less during the peak
hours. And that's, that's what the conclusion is stating in this traffic report. So, almost negligible.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, and does that take into account, Ms. Shibuya, what, what I heard from
your Director this morning about the potential of at least 1,000 embarkations on a cruise a ship in a day,
the additional traffic from the superferry and the buildup of Kahului Harbor? Are you taking those
account plus the 2025 Master Plan for Kahului Harbor load into consideration for impacts residential
and commercial-MS. SHIBUYA: Well, actually this-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --within Kahului vicinity?
MS. SHIBUYA: --1 don't think the traffic study takes into account the superferry stuff, but if the superferry
adds that much more traffic to the overall system then 1 guess, you know, that one percent would be
even less. I mean, relative, relatively speaking.

momlIlg was
everything is going to come out of that one intersection, which is one light away from
right?
MS. SHIBUYA: Wait. You're talking about--
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Entry to the harbor. Because from what I can envision your Department
sharing this morning regarding airports, harbors and highways, it is going to be an extremely extra-busy
area, Puunene and Kaahumanu, extremely busy.
MS. SHIBUYA: --so, so, in relation to this?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, I'm, I'm asking you, because people going to find ways to go around
clogged bottlenecks. So, do you take it into account how this-MS. SHIBUYA: Well, well, and that's why I'm saying that, you know, if, if this superferry project is going to
create such of an impact I would imagine that would have to be addressed, so that we don't create a
serious, more of a serious bottleneck that people have to drive around. So, I'm, I'm not sure how we're
connecting this to this project.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, to me, you know, people going be living in this proposed project,
yeah. To me they take priority over somebody coming over one superferry. And so, I'm going to make
sure we mitigate as best we can to take care our residents before I worry about non-residents coming
from the State harbor or the State airport on a State road. Okay, Chairman. I'm done.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chairman?
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry, are you through, Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm, I'm done with Ms. Shibuya. I have questions later on for Mr. Arakawa.
CHAIR CARROLL: Lets see, are there any questions, further questions for Ms. Shibuya? Okay, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Shibuya, I'm looking at the, I guess, the
traffic study that's in the, I guess, the report from the Planning Department to the Planning Commission,
Page 21,
I

are
no
parking stalls to service customers to
site. Can you give us some additional insight on that?
MS. SHIBUYA: Well, kind of You're, you must be looking at the ... is this the same application?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Well, no. I'm looking at--
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MS. SHIBUYA: Oh, it's a different one.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --yeah, yeah. I guess this one's in our binders, but-MS. SHIBUYA: Okay. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --you guys are showing, I guess, for example, in the morning hours off
Puunene Avenue and Kamehameha Avenue westbound with the project, "C", and without the project,
also a "C". So, "c" I guess is sort of the so, so-called-MS. SHIBUYA: Sort of like acceptable.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --acceptable. Yeah.
MS. SHIBUYA: You know, I notice the way the site is planned they sort of concentrate the, I guess what you
would consider the housing stuff, they tried to separate it from the senior area, yeah. And I'm thinking
perhaps, you know, the overall impact on Puunene Avenue is, is not going to be impacted by the whole
site, Puunene Avenue, and that's why it's showing that it's not going to change in level of service. 'Cause
you know there's, there's like a certain limit and they're still going to be within that level of service "c"
existing, you know, even if the one percent traffic increases.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Just, when I looked at it-MS. SHIBUYA: I don't know if that answered the question.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --it just kind of spurred my curiosity. I, I just thought-MS. SHIBUYA: I'm sorry, you know, I didn't get to look at the traffic study real in detail-COUNCILMEMBER

".~

H L ' - - n....

Okay.

MS.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --to I guess-MS. SHIBUYA: Yeah. Not, not enough to like--
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --a letter change or something.
MS. SHIBUYA: --trigger, trigger something really major, yeah, like major.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: To move it down to "D", I guess, a level of service liD". Okay. Thank you.
Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I got one more.
CHAIR CARROLL: --for her?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, not for her.
CHAIR CARROLL: If not, thank you. And Mr. Hokama, followed by Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Before I ask Mr. Arakawa my question, Chairman, just, just for Ms. Lee, so
that I can have a current. On the sheet that you shared with us, Ms. Lee, exhibit, Figure 2, just so we, I
get, the portion where the, the, the State's new Salvation Army site. Is that part of the, the land that
eventually will be considered to be turned over to the County, but it will need to be leased back to the
Salvation Army?
MS. LEE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So that, but that's not part of the eight-point-something acres for the
land use request?
MS.

It is

part of it, of the 4.8 acres.

IS
IS

acres

MS. LEE: I'd have to ask our architect. Is it? (NOTE: She's asking Alvin Yoshimori, who's in the gallery)
Yes. He's nodding, "yes".
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Can you tell us how big that Salvation Army site is going to be,
please. or is?
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MS. LEE. Yes. We need to ask our architect, Alvin Yoshimori.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, if you would allow Mr. Yoshimori-CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --to give some information, please.
CHAIR CARROLL: Could you please come to the podium.
MR. YOSHIMORI: My name is Alvin Yoshimori. I'm an architect for the project. I'll see if I can answer
Mr. Hokama's question.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And if, and, Mr. Yoshimori, if you have a map, because I was looking-MR. YOSHIMORI: I do.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --at the board that, you know, 'cause I was wondering whether or not that if
Salvation Army was part of the application, not part of the application, part of what A&B will
eventually turn over a title to ... (inaudible )...
MR. YOSHIMORI: The original amount of floor, acreage for Lot 4, which is 4.865 acres, includes portion of
the land that's going to be given back to the salvation army site. And I thought, I think Alice and her
crew decided that when we come in for the rezone we'll just do the whole parcel.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Including the Salvation Army site?
MR. YOSHIMORI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
see

I mean, acreage is
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. YOSHIMORI: --and we were taking approximately four acres. So, that means a .865 acres. And you can
times that by 43,560 square feet.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right, right, right. Okay. So, No. 1 is approximately two acres, more or
less?
MR. YOSHIMORI: Yeah. Wen, 1.64 acres, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No. 1 is smaller than No.2?
MR. YOSHIMORI: Oh, No. 1 is 2.66.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Oh, two-point., 2.66?
MR. YOSHIMORI: Approximately, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah, same. And No.2 is 1.6.
MR. YOSHIMORI: Yes, 1.6.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Yoshimori.
MR. YOSHIMORI: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, if, if anyone else wants to ask Mr. Yoshimori a question, I'd be
happy to ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Anyone else have questions for Mr. Yoshimori? Ifnot, oh, excuse me, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you very much. With regard to the ingress, egress, would the
out
be
to

office COrnD],ex.
And what we
we created a chain link fence to separate the senior housing from
But we do have an emergency lane that functions between to the two parcels, and that's accessed by two
double gates. And we'll also have manned gates to the site to prevent people, I mean, to allow people to
cross over.
And the senior housing will egress off Kaulawahine. Since it's more a residential area we thought we'd
let the senior citizens access off that area instead of Puunene Avenue.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. That answers my question, 'cause I was concerned that in the case of
a fire, an emergency-MS. YOSHIMORI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --that there was at least two routes that you could get out whether it's, you
know, I, I, it'd be easier to get out on Puunene in the case of an emergency-MS. YOSHIMORI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --but I was concerned that if that was the only site the seniors were going
out on then they would be very vulnerable if a fire occurred.
MS. YOSHIMORI: Yeah. This request was made by the Fire Department and the Police Department to have
dual access.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I really appreciate that, and thank you very much-MR. YOSHIMORI: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --for explaining it.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR CARROLL: One moment. Mr. Pontanilla.
MS. YOSHIMORI: Oh!

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for him before I let him go? If not, thank you very
much.
MS. YOSHIMORI: Thank you.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Alright.

Mr.

Director, after hearing the architect, Mr. Yoshimori. and again he works
lam
you
to

.LLJ~"UJlL"."-

HOKAMA: And what levelllC" mean, I mean, I, I, I heard Mr. Yoshimori say level lie·
U()(XUIU! standard.
water.

are,
are
approved
And there are various categories of flooding, and the category he's talking about is
a
flat
to sea
an area of
are flood level heights, which are specified
maps; and basically, if, if the developer wants to build
it
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from State Highways on the road and
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Arakawa. Hearing the comments
flow you keep on site. But if it's
your comments about on site, keeping on-site flow, the current level of
going to recommend to the
in that flood zone isn't it problematic? Is, is there a way that you're
and the idea to mitigate sheet
Department how to deal with this? I mean, if we're already at sea level
te?
flow and drainage is to go down is there other ways for to, for us to mitiga
al is before you is to mitigate the
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama, basically, what the propos
current standards. Basically, any
increase that's caused by the development itself It complies with our
would hold any development to.
development that comes before us these are the standards, which we
no adverse effect on adjacent or
And, and basically, it just means that, you know, whatever is built has
downstream properties.
County have basically done a
Regarding any improvement to the existing situation, generally, we, the
where the swap meet folks
Kahului drainage master plan, and part of that was what was eluded to earlier
the Beach Road area by MCC.
had been looking at possibly occupying a portion of a basin close to the,
accommodate regional flows
That's a portion of that drainage master plan which would, which would
within the greater Kahului region.
e every big storm we hear it from
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And I just ask that becaus
houses always get covered, cars
Mr. Pontanilla's district on that famous street that always gets flooded,
cannot do it
So obviously, if we gotta move the water to another site, we
get flooded.
this area. Is that something
onsite... (CHANGE TAPE)... and that's why I bring up, my concern with
zoning? Or you folks had no
that, that your Department asked to consider as a condition as part of the
requests for certain conditions?
with our drainage rules. That's, that's
MR. ARAKAWA: We, we basically asked the developer to comply
basically what our comments were.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Recommendation, Mr. Chairman.
recommendation?
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion before the Chair gives his
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. The Chair will entertain a motion to revise proposed bill, "A BILL FOR AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE WAILUKU-KAHULUI COMMUNITY PLAN AND LAND USE
MAP FROM PARK TO PUBLIC/QUASI-PUBLIC FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT KAHULUI,
MAUl, HAWAII".
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Moved by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by Ms. Johnson. Discussion, Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think we had enough discussion on this particular subject.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion,
signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed?

VOTE:

ACTION:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, and Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

FIRST READING OF REVISED BILL FOR
AMENDMENT.

COMMUNITY PLAN

CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried. The Chair will entertain a motion to pass the bill to first reading, "A
BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING FROM R-3 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO P-l
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PUBLIC/QUASI-PUBLIC DISTRICT FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT KAHULUI, MAUl, HAWAII"
and to file County Communication No. 05-253.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Moved by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by Mr. Molina. Discussion, Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No discussion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? Hearing none, all those in favor ofthe motion, signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed?

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, and Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I guess before we conclude this, this rather
lengthy afternoon, I think we'd be remiss if we didn't take the opportunity to wish our Member from
Upcountry Maui, Charmaine Tavares, a happy birthday.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Happy birthday.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (applause) ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And that was, my question was a
follow-up on or announcement was a follow-up to Member Mateo's, and I want to wish Charmaine a
happy 39th birthday.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank you, everyone. These birthdays
come too soon and you're not far behind me. We are the same classmate but I'm a little older than he is,
and he continues to point that out to me. But I have been enj oying the privilege of requiring a permit
from the Fire Department now with each birthday, so I can have candles on my cake.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. And I always defer to my senior Member, Charmaine Tavares. I think it's six
days. Any further announcements? If not, I'd like to thank you, and thank all those that came down to
the Chambers today to farticipate and all those in our television audience that joined us today. This
meeting of September 5t is, October 5th is adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..
ADJOURN: 4:03 p.m.

BY:

Transcribed

lu:min:051005
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